
 

 

 

 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
Town Hall – Council Chambers 

Monday, April 20, 2015 
7:00 pm 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

4. Action Items 

4.1 RFD 008-2015: Operating Reserve Policy 

4.2 RFD 009-2015: Debt Management Policy 

4.3 RFD 010-2015: Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use Policy 

4.4 RFD 011-2015: Legacy 2017 Inter-Municipal Agreement 

4.5 Grants to Organizations (Discussion) 

5. Information/Discussion Items 

5.1. Management Reports 

5.2. Planning Services Reports – March 2015 

5.3. RCMP Report – January 1 to March 31, 2015 

5.4. Accounting Activities Report – March & April  2015 

6. Anything by Members 

7. Adjournment 

 



 

 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Operating Reserve Policy 

#008-2015 

 

Date: 16 April 2015 

 

Subject: Operating Reserve Policy 

Proposal Attached: Yes 

 

Submitted by: Rachel Turner, Chief Administrative Officer 

 

Proposal: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council the 

approval of the Operating Reserve Policy as presented. 

 

Background: The attached policy is the next step in the development of core 

best practices for financial management that the Municipal 

Finance Corporation is partnering with the Town of Middleton 

with. The MFC staff will be presenting the background on the 

development of the policy. It has been reviewed with both myself 

and Director of Finance Marianne Daine to ensure that it meets 

the needs of our organization. 

 

Benefits: 

 

As outlined in the MFC presentation. 

Disadvantages: 

 

 

Options: 

 

 

               Required 

Resources: 

 

 

Source of Funding: 

 

 

Sustainability 

Implications: 

(Environmental, 

Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 

 

 

Staff Comments/ 

Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 

Comments: 

 

 

 

CAO Initials:   RLT                               Target Decision Date: 4 May 2015                        



Statement 

 

1. Planning today and saving incrementally for unexpected future events will help mitigate the 

financial impact of major, nonrecurring or unforeseen expenditures on the Town’s annual 

operating budget, as well as take advantage of unexpected opportunities to leverage external 

funding programs. 

 

2. The Town of Middleton is committed to establishing and maintaining an Operating Reserve 

Fund. The level of Operating Reserve Fund will be at least 10 per cent of regular general fund 

operating revenues.  

 

Objectives 

 

1. The purpose of maintaining adequate levels in the Operating Reserve Fund is to mitigate 

current and future risks and to ensure stable tax rates. Operating reserves are a significant 

consideration in long-term financial planning and management.  

 

2. In addition, Operating Reserve Funds will provide the Town with a budgetary option that can 

help mitigate the need to cut services or to raise taxes. 

 

Principles 

 

1. The minimum target for the operating reserve will be approximately 10% of the Town’s 

operating revenues.  

 

2. All operating surpluses will be transferred to the Operating Reserve Fund. 

 

3. Any additional reserves created by the Town will have their purpose clearly defined in a 

Business Case. The Business Case must also include the source and application of funds, the 

expected time line and any appropriate maximum amount, and projected annual 

contributions, withdrawals, and balances. 

 

4. All reserve fund transactions should be transparent to the public. Amounts to be placed in 

the Operating Reserve Fund should be included in the annual budget. 

 

5. The Operating Reserve Fund will be invested at a bank that the Town does business with.  

 

6. It is intended that Council can revisit this policy in the future to amend the minimum 

balances as required. 

 

 

 

Town of Middleton 

Operating Reserve 

Fund Policy 

Effective Date: 

Approval by Council Resolution: 



 

 

 2 

Uses 

 
1. The operating reserve may be used to smooth significant fluctuations in operating 

expenditures and/or revenue loss which cannot be anticipated and are beyond the control of 

the organization. Council can use the fund for both operating and capital purposes. 
 

2. Council may apply funds from the Operating Reserve Fund in the normal course of 

operations, but maintain the minimum approved balance, as follows: 

 

a. Applied in the Annual Draft Operating Budget 

b. Applied during Operating Budget Deliberations 

c. Applied to other funds as part of budget deliberations - Capital, Area Rated, 

Water Utilities 

 

3. Council may apply funds from the Operating Reserve Fund which lowers the fund balance 

below the minimum approved balance, in an emergency situation, such as the following: 

 

a. A protective services emergency, such as a flood condition, snow situation etc. 

b. A required property purchase under an agreement. 

c. A transfer of service/costs to the Town that could not be reasonably budgeted 

or foreseen. 

d. A required payment under existing legislation that could not be foreseen, such as 

pension funding liability. 

e. An emergency requiring repairs to a Town asset or to an asset supported by the 

Town. 

f. A major revenue shortfall that could not be predicted. 

 

4. The assumption under these situations is that there is no other funding source available, or 

other sources are ruled out. This also assumes that a review of the existing budget to take 

cost cutting measures in other areas will not have sufficient impact to mitigate the costs of an 

emergency situation. 

 

5. In order to bring the Operating Reserve Fund back to the minimum balance, the amount of 

the shortfall is to be included in the draft budget for the following fiscal year. During budget 

deliberations, Council can approve, amend or develop a phase in approach to balance the 

Reserve over a number of fiscal periods. 

 

Application 

 

1. This policy applies to the Operating Reserve Fund of the Town of Middleton. 

 

 



 

 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Debt Management Policy 

#009-2015 

 

Date: 16 April 2015 

 

Subject: Debt Management Policy 

Proposal Attached: Yes 

 

Submitted by: Rachel Turner, Chief Administrative Officer 

 

Proposal: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council the 

approval of the Debt Management Policy as presented. 

 

Background: The attached policy is the next step in the development of core 

best practices for financial management that the Municipal 

Finance Corporation is partnering with the Town of Middleton 

with. The MFC staff will be presenting the background on the 

development of the policy. It has been reviewed with both myself 

and Director of Finance Marianne Daine to ensure that it meets 

the needs of our organization. 

 

Benefits: 

 

As outlined in the MFC presentation. 

Disadvantages: 

 

 

Options: 

 

 

               Required 

Resources: 

 

 

Source of Funding: 

 

 

Sustainability 

Implications: 

(Environmental, 

Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 

 

 

Staff Comments/ 

Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 

Comments: 

 

 

 

CAO Initials:   RLT                               Target Decision Date: 4 May 2015                        



Statement 

 

1. Municipalities in Nova Scotia are restricted from running operating deficits. However, 
they may incur debt for capital purposes provided they have statutory authority. 

 

2. The Town of Middleton recognizes that the foundation of any well-managed debt 

program is a comprehensive Debt Management Policy. This document provides 

guidelines for the Town to manage its debt program within available resources in 

three sections: Incurring Debt, Managing Outstanding Debt, and the Timing and 

Purpose of Debt. 
 

Policy Objectives 

 

The objectives of the Debt Management Policy are to: 

a. Ensure adherence to statutory requirements 

b. Enhance long-term financial flexibility and sustainability 

c. Minimize the long-term cost of borrowing 

d. Ensure the term of capital financing is no longer than the useful life of the related 

asset 

e. Ensure consistency and continuity in long-term debt decision making 

Policy Principles 

 

3. Incurring Debt 

 

a. The Town of Middleton has many competing spending priorities for the amount 

of revenues collected each year. The Town’s capacity to incur debt is directly 

related to its ability to service the payments required on the debt. These include 

both annual interest and principal payments. Furthermore, the Town’s ability to 

service the payments required is directly linked to the ability of the Town to raise 

sufficient funds from either taxes or fees.  

 

b. The Town incurs debt for two main purposes related to capital expenditures: 

tax-supported debt which is for capital projects that will be serviced from the 

tax-supported operating budget and self-supported debt which is for capital 

Town of Middleton 

Debt Management 

Policy 

Effective Date: 

Approval by Council Resolution: 



 

 

 2 

projects that will be serviced from revenues from the Town’s utility operations 

(water utility) and other revenue generating capital projects (e.g., administrative 

building tenants, debt incurred on behalf of fire departments). 

 

c. This policy shall be reviewed in three years. 

 

d. Before changes to this policy can be made a full review of the Town of 

Middleton’s finances must be presented to Council.  

 

4. Managing outstanding debt 

 

a) The Town’s long term debt is owed to the Municipal Finance Corporation (MFC). 
When MFC issues debentures to the Department of Finance or capital markets, 

the Corporation is locked into the same maturity schedule, including principal and 

interest payments, as the assets it holds from clients. As a result MFC does not 

allow for the early redemption of debentures.  

 

b) The Town of Middleton will continue to service its outstanding debt according to 

the schedules agreed upon with the MFC at the time the debt was incurred.  

 

5. Timing & Purpose of Debt 

  

a) The Town of Middleton will not incur additional long-term debt except when the 

capital project: 

 

i. maintains current service levels affecting public health, safety or 

welfare;  

ii. is a legal or regulatory requirement; 

iii. is no net cost to the municipality; 

iv. alleviates an emergency service disruption, and;  

v. when the implication of deferring the project is more expensive than 

the project itself.  

 

Application 

 

6. This policy applies to all long-term capital borrowing of the Town of Middleton. 

 

 
 



 

 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use 

#011-2015 

 

 

Date: 16 April 2015 

 

Subject: Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use 

Proposal Attached: Yes 

 

Submitted by: Rachel Turner, Chief Administrative Officer 

 

Proposal: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council the 

approval of the Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use 

Policy. 

 

Background: In the past year, a number of questions have been brought 

forward around the acceptable use of Town-owned devices, 

financial charges, and how those devices are dealt with when 

there are outgoing elected and appointed officials. At the April 

Council meeting, staff were instructed to bring back a policy that 

provided clear and defined parameters on how these issues will 

be dealt with on a go-forward basis. 

 

Benefits: 

 

Issues around accountability, transparency, and responsibility 

when it comes to using the Town of Middleton’s IT network and 

systems are clearly defined for all users. It provides guidelines 

for staff dealing with implementing these systems and also 

ensures that devices that are provided to users are truly required. 

The issue of privacy and what is public information should be 

understood by all users of the Town’s electronic network. 

 

Disadvantages: 

 

This may require a change in practice due to increased awareness 

of responsibility and privacy issues.  

 

The methods of conducting business in today’s society has a 

general trend of more and more staff and elected officials being 

plugged in and connected to technology on an almost 24-hour 

basis. If these are the expectations of any organization, there are 

costs associated with that connectivity and a balance between the 

need and the want to be connected. 

 

Having a work-related cellular phone is also classified as a 

taxable benefit by CRA, and the Town should be following those 

rules set by CRA for the affected staff and elected officials who 

have been provided cellular phones for work related purposes. 



 

This will impact some employees, but the laws set by CRA must 

be followed so that the Town is in compliance should it ever be 

audited by CRA. 

 

Options: 

 

 

               Required 

Resources: 

 

 

Source of Funding: 

 

 

Sustainability 

Implications: 

(Environmental, 

Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 

 

 

Staff Comments/ 

Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 

Comments: 

 

By implementing consistent and clear parameters around the 

acceptable use of the Town’s network and systems, end users are 

provided with the information required to conduct themselves 

appropriately and within the expectations of the Town of 

Middleton. 

 

 

 

 

CAO Initials:   RLT                               Target Decision Date: 4 May 2015                           

 

 
 



TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
CODE   -  

Subject:  Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use Number:  

Coverage:  Employees and Council Approved by: Council 

Effective Date :  Revision Date:  

 

 

Rationale 

 

The purpose of this policy is to define standards, procedures and restrictions for end users 

who have legitimate business requirements to use Town of Middleton information 

technology services and systems. 

 

 

Definitions 

 

1. In this Policy: 

(1) “Chief Administrative Officer” means the Chief Administrative Officer of 

the Town of Middleton; 

(2) “Council” means the Council of the Town of Middleton; 

(3) “document” refers to any kind of file that can be read on a system as if it 

were a printed page, including web pages, emails and files meant to be 

accessed by documentation or data management software (e.g., Microsoft 

Office applications), or an electronic publishing tool (e.g., Adobe Acrobat); 

(4) “elected official” means the Mayor, Deputy Mayor or Councillor of the 

Town of Middleton; 

(5) “IT” means Information Technology; 

(6)  “IT Administrator” means the Information Technology professional 

employed or contracted to provide IT services to the Town of Middleton; 

(7) “Management Committee” means the Management Committee of the Town 

of Middleton; 

(8) “network” means a collection of systems interconnected by communication 

channels that allow sharing of resources and information, including 

connectivity to the internet where applicable; 

(9)  “peripheral” means a device attached to a host system that is dependent on 

the host and expands the host’s capabilities, but does not form part of the 



system’s core structure, including printers, fax machines, digital cameras, 

data storage devices (e.g., flash drives), projectors, keyboards, speakers, and 

monitors; 

(10) “portable systems” means systems which may be moved from place to 

place, including mobile phones and tablets; 

(11)  “server” means a hardware system that supplies data or resources to other 

systems on a network; 

(12)  “software” means the entire set of programs, procedures, and related 

documentation associated with a system; 

(13) “system” means a communication device designed to accept data, perform 

prescribed mathematical and logical operations at high speed, and display 

the results of these operations. Such devices include computers (e.g., 

desktop, laptop), tablets, mobile devices (e.g., cell phones, smart phones), 

and landline telephones;  

(14) “user” means an employee or elected official of the Town of Middleton or 

another individual who is authorized to use the Town of Middleton’s 

network or systems; and 

(15) “working hours” means the hours of operation for the Town of Middleton, 

generally Monday to Friday, 8:30 am to 4:30 pm (8:00 am to 5:00 pm for 

Public Works). 

 

Policy Statement 

 

Guiding Principles 

2. The following principles will guide the IT practices of the Town of Middleton: 

(1) Efficiency – to provide seamless IT infrastructure, tools and services in 

support of the administrative process of the Town of Middleton; 

(2) Professionalism – to require that network use and information sharing is 

used ethically and primarily for business-related purposes; 

(3) Integrity – to ensure that municipal employees and elected officials conduct 

themselves honestly and appropriately in all forms of communication, 



respecting the laws governing copyright infringement, intellectual property, 

software licensing, property rights and privacy; 

(4) Accountability – to require that all municipal employees and elected 

officials are responsible for understanding and following the relevant 

policies and procedures affecting system, network, and Internet usage; 

(5) Security – to continually monitor, evaluate and improve the technology and 

practices employer to secure the Municipality’s mobile devices, networks, 

servers and systems; and 

(6) Legislative – to adhere to applicable provincial, federal and municipal laws, 

regulations and policies. 

 

Roles and Responsibilities 

 

3. Council will ensure that the Town of Middleton has in place a comprehensive 

Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Usage Policy. 

 

4. The Chief Administrative Officer will: 

(1) administer and implement this Policy; and  

(2) identify necessary revisions to the Policy in collaboration with the IT 

Administrator and Management Team. 

 

5. The IT Administrator will: 

(1) authorize and install all software associated with the Town of Middleton’s 

servers, systems, peripherals, and any other devices connected to the 

network. 

(2) generate, when required, internet activity reports, analyze usage patterns, 

and provide a summary report to the Management Committee;  

(3) remain knowledgeable of new concepts to assess and promote the use of 

technology;  and  

(4) ensure information technology training opportunities are available for all 

employees of the Town of Middleton and elected officials. 



(5) provide assistance and support to employees of the Town of Middleton and 

elected officials to maximize their use of the Town of Middleton’s systems 

and network; and 

(6) report any observed and/or suspected incidents of non-compliance with this 

Policy by the Town of Middleton’s employees and elected officials to the 

CAO. 

 

6. The Department Heads will: 

(1) ensure that Service Area staff are familiar with this Policy; 

(2) address any inappropriate activity conducted by service area staff; and  

(3) identify necessary revisions to the Policy in collaboration with the IT 

Administrator and Chief Administrative Officer. 

 

Personal Usage of Network and Systems 

7. Users are permitted to use the Town of Middleton’s network and systems for 

reasonable personal use to take care of occasional personal matters during working hours, 

provided that doing so does not interfere with the operations of the Town of Middleton. 

 

8. Personal use of the Town of Middleton’s network and systems that incur costs more 

than $10.00 over and above the regular and approved budget or would reasonably be 

considered outside of regular use (per month, quarter, year, or cumulative?) will be 

invoiced and recovered from the individual user. 

 

Prohibition on Use of Portable Systems While Operating Motor Vehicles 

9. The use of a portable system by an employee or elected official of the Town of 

Middleton is prohibited while operating: 

(1) a vehicle owned by the Town of Middleton; or 

(2) a vehicle not owned by the Town of Middleton, but in the conduct of the 

business of the Town of Middleton 

in accordance with section 100D of Nova Scotia’s Motor Vehicle Act, as amended. 

 



 

Internet Usage 

10. Users shall not access the following categories of websites while using the network 

or systems of the Town of Middleton: 

(1) file sharing and piracy sites; 

(2) sites that promote, foster, or perpetuate discrimination on the basis of race, 

creed, colour, age, religion, gender, marital status, physical or mental 

disability, or sexual orientation; 

(3) sexual content and sites that link to sexual content;  

(4) sites that are illegal or promote illegal activity contrary to the laws of 

Canada or Province of Nova Scotia; and  

(5) any other material that would reasonably be considered offensive. 

 

11.  A user who accidentally connects to a website described in section 10 must 

immediately disconnect from the site and notify the IT Administrator of the incident. 

 

Safety and Security 

12.  Users shall not make changes to or disable software which has been installed on the 

Town of Middleton’s system and network for the purpose of: 

(1) protection of the user and the Town of Middleton’s privacy and security; or 

(2) protection of the network and system of the Town of Middleton against 

viruses and malicious software.  

 

13.  Users shall not download and install software on the Town of Middleton’s systems 

or connect peripheral devices to the Town of Middleton’s system and network without the 

prior approval of the IT Administrator. 

 

14. Users shall not take mobile devices out of Canada without prior notification and 

approval from the CAO. All occurrences of devices leaving the country must be reported 

and recorded per subsection 5(3) of the Personal Information International Disclosure 

Protection Act. 



 

15. Users who have been provided mobile devices as part of their employment with the 

Town of Middleton, or as a result of an election, shall return said devices when the 

employer/employee/Council relationship is ended. Due to the nature of technology, the 

CAO, in consultation with the IT Administrator and Director of Finance, may allow the 

purchase of the mobile device based on the condition of the device and the level of 

technology that is available/utilized by the Town of Middleton as compared to the capacity 

of the mobile device in question. 

 

Personal Accountability 

16.  A user shall not share or divulge any username or password issued to the user by 

the Town of Middleton for the purpose of providing access to the system, network or 

Internet resources of the Town of Middleton.  

 

17.  A user of the Town of Middleton’s network and system shall identify themselves 

honestly, accurately, and completely when participating in all forms of electronic 

communication (e.g., email) and when participating in other interactive Internet-based 

activities (e.g., social media and blogs).   

 

Application of Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy  

18.   Activity records of a user’s system and network usage, which includes, but is not 

limited to call history, emails, text messages and Internet access history, is information that 

may be released to the public, if requested, under Part XX of the Municipal Government 

Act, as amended, regarding freedom of information and protection of privacy. 

 

Discipline 

19.  Any contravention of this Policy may result in discipline by the Town of Middleton 

including, but not limited to confiscation of equipment of the Town of Middleton, and 

disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 

 

 

 



 

Certification 
 

 

 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that this policy was 

duly passed by a majority vote of the Council 

at a duly called Council meeting held on the 

___ day of _______, 20___.                                 

 

GIVEN under the hand of the CAO and 

under the seal of the Town of Middleton this 

__________  day of ___________,  20   . 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

                  Rachel L. Turner 

       Chief Administrative Officer 

    



 

 

 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 

Legacy 2017 Inter-municipal Agreement 

#011-2015 

 

 

Date: 16 April 2015 

 

Subject: Legacy 2017 Inter-municipal Agreement 

Proposal Attached: Yes 

 

Submitted by: Rachel Turner, Chief Administrative Officer 

 

Proposal: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council the 

approval, in principle, of the Inter-municipal Service Agreement 

for the 2017 Legacy Initiative as presented. 

 

Background: Over the last 8-10 months, the Town of Middleton has been 

involved in a developing project that has been termed the Legacy 

2017 Initiative, which was initially brought into discussion by 

MP Greg Kerr. As a result, a broad and ever-growing committee 

has been working towards the organization and integration of the 

communities and businesses, as well as First Nations, in 

Annapolis, Digby and Clare to find a way to build a lasting 

legacy that encourages, supports and promotes Canada’s 150th 

anniversary, and recognize the Annapolis Basin region as the 

birthplace of what has now become Canada. 

 

The broad intent is to find the common thread that winds through 

the various communities and geographic areas of the above-noted 

district that link and support each other in telling the tale of our 

history and how this area came to be the birthplace of Canada. 

 

At a meeting held in February 2015, the Committee was 

presented with and agreed to the idea of forming an inter-

municipal service agreement, pursuant to Section 60 and 61 of 

the Municipal Government Act, to better coordinate this 

initiative. 

 

It has been proposed that a budget for this Board be developed at 

no more than $50,000, with the funding formula for participating 

parties based on the Valley Waste funding formula. The schedule 

has not yet been determined, and the agreement has yet to be 

reviewed by a solicitor. 

 

Included is a recent press release that outlines some of the 

support and publicity around this project, as both the Federal and 



 

Provincial Governments have been apprised of and support what 

is happening. 

 

Benefits: 

 

Participating in a larger, regional approach that is intended to 

bring higher awareness both nationally and internationally, and 

develop the region as a destination for tourists and residents 

alike, to learn more about our history, culture, and heritage, has 

the potential to improve the tourism traffic through the Town and 

within the region. This could have a tremendously positive 

impact on economic development and stability for our 

commercial entities. 

 

Disadvantages: 

 

There will be a financial cost associated with this that has yet to 

be determined. 

Options: 

 

 

               Required 

Resources: 

 

Staff time through involvement in the Legacy Committee, as well 

as funding to see the project through over the next two or three 

fiscal years, beginning in 2015/16. 

Source of Funding: 

 

General Operating Budget. 

Sustainability 

Implications: 

(Environmental, 

Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 

 

This initiative has the potential to positively impact the 

community on economic, cultural, and social levels through 

increased tourism, economic development, and awareness of this 

region’s cultural heritage in the development of Canada as a 

nation. 

Staff Comments/ 

Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 

Comments: 

 

There is support from all levels of government in the development 

of this project. By strengthening the region and promoting it within 

the country and internationally, we have an opportunity to tap into 

a tourism market that has largely been underutilized. 

 

 

 

CAO Initials:   RLT                               Target Decision Date: 4 May 2015                           

 

 
 



Page 1 of 9 
 

DRAFT INTERMUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(DRAFT April 13, 2015 - Must be vetted through Legal Council) 

Canada 2017 Board 

THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE EFFECTIVE THE ______ DAY OF March, 2015 

BETWEEN: 

TOWN OF ANNAPOLIS ROYAL, a body corporate pursuant to Section 8 
of the Municipal Government Act; 

TOWN OF DIGBY, a body corporate pursuant to Section 8 of the Municipal 
Government Act; 

TOWN OF MIDDLETON, a body corporate pursuant to Section 8 of the 
Municipal Government Act; 

MUNICIPALITY OF THE DISTRICT OF CLARE, a body corporate 
pursuant to Section 7 of the Municipal Government Act; 

MUNICIPALITY OF THE DISTRICT OF DIGBY, a body corporate 
pursuant to Section 7 of the Municipal Government Act; 

AND 

MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF ANNAPOLIS, a body 
corporate pursuant to Section 7 of the Municipal Government Act; 

THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Purpose  

1. The purpose of this Agreement is to create a corporation to provide for the following services: 

a) To act as a coordinating body that encourages, supports and promotes the celebration 
of Canada's 150th anniversary; 

b) To encourage, support and/or engage in activities and projects that celebrate 
Canada's 150th anniversary;  

c) To encourage, support and engage in activities and projects which celebrate the 
Annapolis Basin region as the birthplace of what would become Canada; 

d) To encourage, support and celebrate the role of First Nations and their hospitality 
and crucial role in the development of Canada; 

e) To encourage, support and celebrate the diverse cultural mix that established the 
region as a welcoming society in pre-confederation Canada; 

f) To encourage, develop and promote the communications to media celebrating the 
role of the Annapolis Basin Region in the establishment of Canada. 



Page 2 of 9 
 

2. This Agreement is an Intermunicipal Service Agreement pursuant to Section 60 and 61 of the 
Municipal Government Act. 

3. This agreement  

(1)  creates a body corporate, the “Canada 2017 Board” (the “Board”), a committee consisting 
of one (1) representative of each participating municipality plus one First Nation 
representative; 

(2) delegates to the Board the power to act as a coordinating body that encourages, supports 
and promotes the celebration of Canada's 150th anniversary and may include the 
provision of services within or outside the participating municipal units; and 

(3) for greater certainty, delegates to the Board the power to create or own assets for this 
purpose. 

4. Each municipal unit may also appoint an alternate member of the Board who may vote in the 

place of the member during any absence and the alternate member may attend meetings of the 

Board at the expense of the appointing municipal unit and shall maintain awareness of the 

business of the Board such that continuity is not lost and no disruption of the work of the 

Board occurs. 

5. The Board may invite two (2) citizens at large to be members of the Board. 

6. All members will be voting members. 

7. A board member shall serve a term of office specified by the appointing municipality and 

shall hold office until their successor is named. 

8. Appointments are effective upon the Board being advised in writing of the name and address 

for the appointed representative, together with the representative’s term of office by the 

appointing municipality. 

9. Initial appointments shall be made by each participating municipality no later than four (4) 

weeks after signing this Agreement. 

10. In the event that a member resigns or otherwise vacates his / her office, the appointing 

municipality shall appoint a new member no later than six weeks from the effective date of 

the vacancy. 

11. Each municipal unit is responsible for reimbursement of travel costs for their representative 

to attend board meetings.  The Board shall reimburse members for travel and other expenses 

incurred in connection with the carrying out the work of the Board pursuant to a written 

expense policy to be adopted by the Board, and as may be amended from time to time. 

DECISIONS 

12. A quorum of the Board shall be a majority of the members. 

13. Any decision requiring the agreement of the members of the board of directors shall be 

decided by a majority of those members present unless otherwise stated in this agreement. 

14. A motion on which the votes are tied is lost. 

15. The Corporation shall adopt rules of procedure to govern its meetings and the conduct of its 

business. 



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

16. Any decision requiring the agreement of the parties represented on the Board shall be decided 

by a majority of two thirds (2/3) plus one.  Decisions requiring consent of the municipal units 

include: 

a) changes to the parties to the Agreement; 

b) addition of new parties to the agreement; 

c) additions to the services agreed to be provided by the Board; 

d) the allocation, leasing or sale of capital assets having a value of greater than one hundred 

thousand dollars ($100,000); 

e) approval of the annual operating plan and budget; 

f) approval of the annual capital budget; 

g) approval of supplemental budget estimates; and 

h) alteration of this agreement. 

OFFICERS 

17. The Board shall annually name one of its members to be Chairperson. 

18. The Board shall annually name one of its members to be Vice-Chairperson to act in the 
absence or incapacity of the Chairperson. 

19. All members, including the Chairperson or other person presiding, shall vote on every question 
before the Board, except in the case of a conflict of interest where the member shall declare his / 
her interest in the matter and conduct himself / herself in accordance with the Municipal Conflict 
of Interest Act.  An alternate member may vote in the place of a member who has declared an 
interest in a matter before the Board. 

20. The board of directors shall appoint a Secretary to keep and maintain the minutes and records 
(except the financial records) and perform such other duties as may be assigned.  This position 
may be held by a member of the Board, an employee of the Corporation, an employee of a 
municipality that is a party to this agreement, or a person contracted to provide service to the 
Board.  However, at no time is an employee of a municipality an employee of the Corporation. 

21. The board of directors shall appoint a Treasurer to maintain the financial records of the 
Corporation and perform such other duties as may be assigned.  This position may be held by 
a member of the Board, an employee of the Corporation, an employee of a municipality that is a 
party to this agreement, or a person contracted to provide service to the Board.  However, at no 
time is an employee of a municipality an employee of the Corporation. 

22. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined.  

SHARING OF COSTS  

23. The municipal units agree to contribute to the net operating costs (i.e. operating costs minus 
operating revenues) and capital costs incurred by the Corporation in accordance with the cost-
sharing formula which is attached as Schedule “A”(to be developed) to this Agreement, and 
which schedule is initialed by the participating municipal units. 



 

Page 4 of 9 
 

ASSETS 

24. The Corporation shall have the power to accept grants, gifts, assignments, devises and 
bequests of real and personal property and to apply them to the general purposes of the 
Corporation. 

25. The Corporation shall have the power to acquire real and personal property by deed, will, gift 
or lease or in any other manner, and to lease. 

26. Any asset created or acquired by the Corporation shall be owned by the Corporation. 

27. No capital asset valued at greater than one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) shall be 
disposed of by the Corporation unless approved by all of the participating municipal units. 

BORROWING 

28. The Corporation shall have the power to borrow money from the Nova Scotia Municipal 
Finance Corporation, or any bank, credit union or financial institution, at prevailing interest 
rates for any lawful purpose of the Corporation, including but not limited to capital costs and 
acquisitions, debt financing and refinancing, and the establishment of an operating line of 
credit for current annual expenditures, subject only to Ministerial approval as may be required 
by Section 88(1) of the Municipal Government Act. 

SERVICES AND CONTRACTS 

29. The Board is empowered to make provision for the use of equipment, facilities, services and 

personnel necessary or advisable to provide the services contemplated by this Agreement. 

30. The Board may contract with any person, including a municipal unit, for the provision of any 

service or facility necessary or advisable to provide the responsibilities assigned to it by this 

Agreement. 

31. This Agreement delegates to the Board the power to enter into agreements with other 

municipalities, villages, service commissions, the Government of the Province or of Canada 

or a department or agency of either of them or a band council pursuant to the Indian Act 

(Canada). 

32. The Board shall annually appoint an auditor. 

OPERATING 

33. The Corporation shall have the power to raise revenue by means determined appropriate by 

the Board to augment or replace the municipalities’ contribution to costs, provided that such 

means are consistent with the annual operating plan and budget. 

34. Operating costs may include the following: 

a. wages and salaries for personnel employed directly by the Corporation for the purposes 

of the Corporation; 

b. the payment of fees to contractors; 

c. principal and interest charges on debts incurred by the Corporation or the 

municipalities on behalf of the Corporation; 

d. lease, maintenance and repair expenses for any property operated by the Corporation 

for the purposes of the Corporation; 



 

Page 5 of 9 
 

e. preparation, inspection, delivery, installation and removal of materials, plants, tools 

and supplies; 

f. travel expenses properly incurred by employees or members of the Corporation for the 

purposes of the Corporation; 

g. rentals of equipment whether from a municipality or otherwise, including any 

applicable insurance cost, transportation cost, cost of loading and unloading, 

registration fees, cost of installation, dismantling and removal, repair and replacement 

(exclusive of repairs necessitated by defects when acquired); 

h. expendable materials, supplies, light; power, heat, water, and tools except those 

customarily provided by trades people; 

i. advertising, promotional and educational costs; 

j. assessments under the Workers Compensation Act, employment insurance, Canada 

Pension Plan contributions, vacation pay, or paid vacations and other statutory 

requirements, sales and other taxes; 

k. other permissive employee benefits, as approved by the Corporation; 

l. administration costs of the Corporation including payment of staff and reimbursement 

of expenses to board members, legal and audit fees, and like costs; 

m. premiums for liability, errors and omissions, plant and equipment and other insurance 

policies; 

n. any capital costs financed through capital from revenue and not financed by a capital 

borrowing, grants or other sources; and  

o. other expenses deemed necessary provided that they are consistent with this 

Agreement. 

ANNUAL OPERATING PLAN 

35. No later than 90 days before the beginning of the fiscal year, the Corporation shall approve 

and submit the annual operating plan and annual budget to each of the municipal units for 

their approval. 

36. No later than 30 days before the beginning of the fiscal year, the municipal units shall each 

consider and either approve or reject the annual operating plan and budget, and inform the 

Corporation of such decision within one day. 

PAYMENTS BY MUNICIPAL UNITS 

37. The Corporation shall invoice the municipal units monthly for each municipality’s share of 

the net operating costs and capital costs, and such invoice shall be due immediately and 

payable within 60 days of the date of the invoice. 

38. Any municipality which is more than thirty days in arrears shall pay interest on the arrears at 

a rate to be determined by policy of the Corporation, as may be amended from time-to-time. 

BUDGET  

39. The Corporation shall not expend funds in excess of the amounts approved by the municipal 

units in the annual budget or any supplementary budget. 

 



 

Page 6 of 9 
 

40. If the Corporation determines that the annual budget should be revised, the Corporation will 

approve and submit a supplementary budget to each of the municipalities for approval.  Not 

later than 45 days after receiving the supplementary budget, the municipality shall consider 

and either approve or reject the supplementary budget and inform the Corporation of such 

decision within one day. 

MUNICIPAL GRANTS 

41. The municipal units, or any one or more of them, may apply for grants on behalf of the 

Corporation for which municipalities are eligible but for which the Corporation is not eligible.  

Any grants so acquired shall be credited to the Corporation and shall be in addition to the 

municipality’s share of the net operating costs and capital costs of the Corporation. 

FISCAL YEAR/ANNUAL REPORT 

42. The fiscal year of the Corporation is the municipal fiscal year. 

43. No later than one hundred twenty days after the end of the fiscal year, the Association shall 

submit an annual report to each municipal unit describing the Association’s activities in the 

preceding fiscal year and including an audited financial statement. 

44. The accounts of the Association shall be kept and reported on as required by the Municipal 

Accounting and Reporting Manual prescribed by the Minister of Municipal Affairs as may be 

amended from time-to-time. 

AMENDMENT 

45. Any new party to the agreement shall be a municipal unit or another organization permitted 

pursuant to Section 60 of the Municipal Government Act. 

46. New parties may only be added to this agreement upon agreement of the participating 

municipalities in accordance with Section 16. 

WITHDRAWAL BY MUNICIPAL UNIT 

47. Any municipal unit wishing to withdraw from this Agreement shall give notice of withdrawal 

to the other municipalities not less than nine months prior to the intended withdrawal date.  

The withdrawal date shall coincide with the end of a fiscal year and shall not be any other 

date. 

48. Any municipal unit withdrawing from this agreement remains responsible for the 

municipality’s share of any liabilities of the Corporation incurred to the date of the withdrawal 

and any severance, penalty, or other costs necessarily incurred by the Corporation as a result 

of the withdrawal. 

49. Any municipal unit to this agreement which exercises its right to withdraw from the agreement 

ceases to have any interest in any assets created or acquired by the Corporation. 

DISSOLUTION 

50. The Corporation may only be dissolved upon agreement of all of the parties. 

51. Upon dissolution, the assets and liabilities of the Corporation are vested in the municipalities 

in the same proportion as costs are shared, as determined by the cost-sharing formula set out 

in Schedule “B”(to be developed). 



 

Page 7 of 9 
 

APPLICABLE LAW 

52. This Agreement is governed by the laws of Nova Scotia. 

53. The Corporation is bound by: 

a) the Municipal Government Act, including Part XX (Freedom of Information and Protection 

of Privacy; 

b) the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act; 

c) the Privacy Act (Canada); 

d) the agreement on interprovincial trade and applicable provincial government procurement 

policies; and 

e) any general municipal agreements to which all of the participating municipal units have 

consented. 

ARBITRATION 

54. If any disagreement arises among the municipal units as to the proper interpretation of this 

agreement that cannot be resolved by mediation, the member municipalities shall submit the 

area of disagreement to an arbitrator as provided by the Commercial Arbitration Act. 

TERMINATION 

55. The parties agree that this Agreement shall terminate on March 31, 2020, but shall be capable 

of renewal on such terms as the parties shall agree in writing. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

56. The municipal units agree that this is the entire agreement among the parties with respect to 

the provision of the services described herein, and that this agreement may only be altered by 

agreement in writing by the parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this agreement by their respective 

officials, duly authorized in that behalf, on the day and year first above written. 

SIGNED AND SEALED 

in the presence of: 

 

 

      ) TOWN OF ANNAPOLIS ROYAL 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) Per:     ____, Mayor 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) Per:      , Clerk 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 



 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

 

      ) TOWN OF DIGBY 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) Per:     ____, Mayor 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) Per:      , Clerk 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

 

 

      ) TOWN OF MIDDLETON 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) Per:     ____, Mayor 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) Per:      , Clerk 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

      ) 

 



 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

 

     ) MUNICIPALITY OF THE DISTRICT OF CLARE 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) Per:      , Warden 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) Per:      , Clerk 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

 

 

     ) MUNICIPALITY OF THE DISTRICT OF DIGBY 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) Per:      , Warden 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) Per:      , Clerk 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

 

 

     ) MUNICIPALITY OF THE COUNTY OF ANNAPOLIS 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) Per:      , Warden 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) Per:      , Clerk 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 

     ) 



Province Offers Support for 2017 Legacy Planning  
 
April 10, 2015 
 
(ANNAPOLIS ROYAL, NS) Momentum continues to grow in southwestern Nova Scotia to build a regional 
legacy strategy to mark Canada’s 150th birthday. 
 
The provincial government underlined its support at a recent meeting in Annapolis Royal when Kelliann 
Dean, the Deputy Minister for the Nova Scotia Department of Communities, Culture and Heritage 
(NSCCH) met with West Nova Member of Parliament Greg Kerr and Annapolis Municipality Chief 
Administrative Officer John Ferguson. 
 
The meeting was arranged by Kerr as part of his ongoing effort to encourage community preparedness 
and collaboration in benefiting from the federal government’s plan to commemorate and support 
significant heritage milestones of a broad national perspective through the “Road to 2017” plan. 
 
The meeting included a tour of Fort Anne and a viewing of the Nova Scotia Charter document. 
 
Kerr welcomed the provincial backing and said it was indicative of a positive spirit of government 
cooperation. 
 
“At an earlier meeting Premier McNeil indicated his wholehearted support for such a collaborative 
regional approach and the discussion with the Deputy Minister, and a senior member of her staff 
underlined the fact that he remains fully committed to taking advantage of this opportunity.” Kerr 
reported. 
 
Following the meeting and tour Deputy Minister Dean said she was impressed with the level of planning 
and teamwork; and reiterated the provincial government’s commitment of support for the regional 
legacy 2017 agenda. 
 
 Kerr once again said that the Canada 2017 is an opportunity that can’t be ignored. 
 
“This may be a national initiative but the Premier , the provincial government, and the area’s municipal  
units all realize that  we have  to work together to develop a plan that will effectively recognize and 
promote our distinguished historical legacy”, he maintained. 
 
In February six area municipal units announced agreement to develop a regional heritage and cultural 
funding strategy, and that their respective municipal units would entertain a draft inter-municipal 
agreement to identify and pursue specific legacy initiatives. Several more area municipalities have 
recently indicated strong interest in participating in the agreement. 
  
The agreement would allow for a corporation or not-for-profit organization to be created, giving more 
flexibility to the municipal units. 
  
A regional Legacy Committee has been formed and is chaired by Municipality of Annapolis Chief 
Administrative Officer (CAO) John Ferguson, who also welcomed the involvement of the Province. 



 
“The fact that the provincial government saw fit to send the Deputy Minister and a senior staff member 
from the Department of Communities, Culture and Heritage to meet with us and to offer support is a 
definite indication that this project is getting top level attention”, Ferguson pointed out. 
 
The CAO commended Kerr’s leadership on this project and said that the level of communication and 
cooperation between the area MP and the Premier, who is also the MLA for Annapolis, has been 
instrumental in moving the planning forward and that he anticipated the municipal units would follow 
with equally dedicated participation. 
 
“The support from our region’s Mayors, Wardens and administration has been tremendous,” Ferguson 
said, adding “This regional relationship continues to build not only opportunity that will attract people 
to all our communities, but raise our historical profile nationally and internationally. “ 
 
Both Kerr and Ferguson suggested that the next steps would include the formalization of the shared 
municipal agreement and development of a comprehensive proposal. 
 
 

-30- 
 
 

Photo caption for attached:  Pictured in front of the Nova Scotia Charter document at Fort Anne National 
Historic Site are (l-r): Annapolis County CAO John Ferguson;  Fort Anne Visitor Experience Manager Lillian 
Stewart: Nova Scotia CCH Deputy Minister Kelliann Dean; and West Nova MP Greg Kerr. 
 
 
 

For further information contact:      Peter MacLellan 

                                                             Legacy Committee Communications Coordinator 

                                                             (902) 308-3331 

  

                                                             John Ferguson 

                                                             Legacy Committee Chair 

                                                            ( 902) 532-3130 

 

 





TOWN OF MIDDLETON 2015/16 GRANT REQUESTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
Revised April 14, 2015

Organization Project/Program 2013 2014 2015 Comment

Grant Grant Request

AVCC Tourism Committee Marketing Strategy 0 $0 $2,000 Marketing with emphasis on

wine/culinary attractions

$8,000/year after for 3 years.

Middleton Fire Department 125th Anniversary 10,000.00$     Building around  HOV Celebrations

Trans County Transportation Operating Grant $1,500 $2,000 $2,000 Based on $1.80 per capita

Community Transit Nova Scotia Membership $500

Companion Animal Prot. Society Operating Grant $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 Annual Funding Request

A.V. Macdonald Museum Operating Grant $5,000 $5,000 Annual Funding Request

Heart of the Valley Festival Annual Festival $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 Annual Funding Request

AC Ground Search & Rescue Training Funds $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 Annual Funding Request

Valley Community Learning Program Support $500 $500 $1,500 Donation, Programs in Town

Middleton Rink Commission Insulation/doors $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 Annual Funding Request

Old Holy Trinity Charity Trust 5,500 Exterior repairs incl. pinnacles

Total $23,500.00 $24,000 $38,000













AGENDA ITEM: _15.04.20.5.1_ 
 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 
April 20, 2015 

 
 
WATER MAINS 
 

 Hydrants have been pumped and snow removal ongoing. 
 
SEWER MAINS AND TREATMENT PLANT 
 

 General maintenance. 
 

ROAD REPAIR 
 

 Cold patch where needed. 
 

GENERAL MAINTENANCE 
 

 Snowplowing, salting and sanding. 
  

CAPITAL WORK 
 

 Flow meters in well field have been installed. 

 Foundation and underground work for bathroom storage building in the park has been 
completed. Building construction has been completed on the outside and inside work has 
started. 

 Pumps for the lift station on Freeman Street are ordered and control panel is being 
tendered. 

 Lights on Commercial Street are all re-wired; waiting for completion of electrical panel. 

 Working with CBCL for environmental projects. 
 
OH & S 
 

 OH&S meetings are taking place once a month. Minutes will be posted on SharePoint. 

 No accidents to report at this time. 
 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS’ PROJECTS 
 

 A schedule for routes, timing and scheduling of drivers for snow removal is underway. 
 
 
John Pearson 
Director of Public Works 



Monthly Report 

April, 2015 

Jennifer Coolen 

Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Physical Activity  
 We are currently in the process of creating a healthy living log book, which will be available to 

the public free of charge in conjunction with our summer challenges and community events. The 

log book will provide a place to record physical activity, food intake, and goals.  

 This summer will see a rollout plan to promote Middleton’s great parks and outdoor spaces. We 

are currently working on the beginning stages of this but such a promotion will include walking 

trails and areas to play sport and be active. We will also focus on providing organized summer 

activity opportunities that utilize these spaces. 

 With the Free Facility Access grant from the Department of Health & Wellness, there will be free 

public swims at the Middleton Pool every Saturday and Sunday afternoons. Specific times will be 

promoted when the pool schedule has been finalized.  

 Several clubs, challenges, and events will take place this summer. There will be a 10,000 steps 

walking club, various exercise classes, a community health challenge for June is Recreation and 

Parks month, the 2nd annual fun run, Tennis lessons, the Free Loan Program which includes the 

Canoe and Kayaks, bicycles, and various other sporting goods. More information on these 

programs and events will be made public as details are sorted. 

 

Parks & Facilities 
Our Parks & Facilities manager is now back to work. Despite the fact that he returned to snow covered 

facilities, he was managed to keep busy with other tasks. Such things include: 

 Budget work – finishing off purchases from last year’s budget and preparing a projection for this 

year 

 Facility assessment from winter shut-down 

 Equipment inventory and repair for our bicycle loan program 

 Organizing/purging from the old tennis court building and the green barn at Rotary Park 

 Storage preparation for skis and snowshoes 

 Employment recruitment 

 

 



Other Points of Interest 
 We have received one student grant from HRSDC for a Youth Coordinator position 

 We are working diligently on our summer program and event planning – we will be doing some 

interviews for the summer positions in the next few weeks. 

 We are now accepting resumes for the Coordinator of Programs and Communications. This is a 

full-time, permanent job and more information can be found on our website at 

www.discovermiddleton.ca or by contacting the office directly. 

 An update on our splashpad is attached to this report. This information was recently presented 

to the Rotary Club as they are a substantial funder of the project. 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jennifer Coolen, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

 

 

 

http://www.discovermiddleton.ca/


TOWN OF MIDDLETON SPLASHPAD INFORMATION SHEET 

 

UNDERGROUND 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

COMPLETED LAST 

FALL 

CONCRETE BEING 

POURED IN MAY BY 

DAVE WOTTON  

CONCRETE—IN 

COOLER WEATHER 

THE CONCRETE DRIES 

SLOWER 

READY TO USE BY 

THE END OF JUNE 

GRAND OPENING IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH 

EVENT IN EARLY  

JULY—DETAILS TO 

FOLLOW 

REVENUE: 

ROTARY CLUB: $30,000 

PROVINCE OF NS: $25,000 

TOWN  OF  MIDDLETON: 

$30,000 CASH 

DONATED LABOUR: PRICELESS 

 

COSTS: 

A.B.C.—$44,000 

CONCRETE WORK—$15,000 

PLUMBING AND INSTALLATION— 

$26,000 

STILL NEED TO FIGURE 

OUT SIGNAGE 

PLUMBING 

DONE  

IN-HOUSE 



AGENDA ITEM # _15.04.20.5.1_ 

 
 
 
 

Regional Emergency Management Coordinator 

Monthly Report 

March 2015 
 

 

 

 

March  02        DEMC meeting, Chipman Bldg. Kentville 

             19        PLANS AGM and Directors meetings by audio conference 

             31        Exercise Handshake 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

David McCoubrey 

Regional Emergency Management Coordinator 

Annapolis County 
 

 
 

 

  
 



 

 

TOWN OF MIDDLETON 

 

MARCH 

2015 

PLANNING SERVICES 
      

 



Town of Middleton   

Planning Services Report – March  2015 

 

Prepared by: Sharon McAuley   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1. Planning and Development Activity Report  

2. Building Permit Activity Report  

3. Fire Inspection Activity Report  

4. Planning/GIS Technician Activity Report  

5. Planning Services Financial Reports  
a. Planning Services Report  
b. Invoicing Report 
 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

THE  4SITE GROUP                                                                                                             2906 Parkdale Ave./Halifax/NS/B3L 3Z3 

                                                                                                                                   voice  902.229.3634/email  info@4sitegroup.ca 

 

Planning 
Development 
Project Management 

 
To:    Sharon McAuley, Coordinator, Planning and Development Services  
From:              Chris Millier 
Date:    April 1, 2015 
Re:  Town of Middleton, Status Report 

 

March 1 – 31, 2015 
 

Planning Application Activity 
 
Development Permit Activity 

 
 Development Permit M15-002, March 13, 2015 

WD Partners/Carla Connolly, 241 Main Street 
Erection, Facia Wall Signs on existing Commercial Structure 

 
 Development Permit M15-003, March 13, 2015 

PeopleWorx, 298 Marshall Street 
Erection, Facia Wall Sign on existing Commercial Structure 

 
 Development Permit M15-004, March 23, 2015 

Chandler Construction, 15 Freeman Street 
Construction, Addition to Existing Commercial Structure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@4sitegroup.ca


Page 2 of 2 

THE  4SITE GROUP                                                                                                             2906 Parkdale Ave./Halifax/NS/B3L 3Z3 

                                                                                                                                   voice  902.229.3634/email  info@4sitegroup.ca 

 
 
 

 
 

                      

  Permit Activity Summary, March 2015   

       Current Current Previous Yr. Previous Yr.   

       Month YTD Month YTD   

  Development Permits       

   Residential       

    New Construction 0 0 0 0   

    Renovation/Addition 0 4 0 2   

    Accessory Structures 0 7 0 8   

             

   Commercial/Industrial       

    New Construction 0 0 0 0   

    Renovation/Addition 1 3 0 1   

    Accessory Structures 0 1 0 0   

         

  Institutional      

   New Construction 0 0 0 1  

   Renovation / Addition 0 1 0 1  

   Accessory Structures 0 2 0 1  

           

   Other (signs, occupancy, etc.) 2 7 1 6   

             

           

  Final Subdivision Approval       

    Residential Lots Created 0 0 0 1   

    Comm./Industrial Lots Created 0 0 0 0   
                      

 

mailto:info@4sitegroup.ca


Month: March 1

20

17

24

Total Estimated Value March 2015: $10,000.00 1 $447,300.00 $230.00

Total Estimated Value March 2014: $0.00 0 $742,008.00 $6,818.73

Total Estimated Value March 2013: $0.00 0 $808,879.51

File # Name Permit Fee
Estimated 

Value

M15-005 Calvin MacDonald $140.00 $10,000.00

$50.00

$40.00

$0.00

$230.00 $10,000.00

Total Active Permits: 32

18 Reagh Ave. bathroom reno March 19, 2015

Dev. Permits Only 2 permits

Total March:

0 permits

1 permit

Renewed Permits

Plumbing Permits

Total permits for March 2015:

Total permits for March 2013:

ConstructionLocation

Total Estimated Value YTD 2012-2013:

Applicant Address

Total Estimated Value YTD 2013-2014:

Town of Middleton

Number of 

Building Permits 

Total Estimated Value YTD 2014-2015:

Permit Fees YTD 14-15:

Permit Fees March  2015:

Municipal Unit:

March 2015

$808,879.51

Year To Date 2013-2014:

Year To Date 2012-2013:

TOWN OF MIDDLETON

$447,300.00

Building Value

Month:

Year To Date 2014-2015:

 BUILDING PERMIT REPORT

Figures based on Fiscal Year April to March

$10,000.00

$742,008.00

Total permits for March 2014:

Date                                       

Building Permit Issued

Middleton



Middleton

Fire Inspection Report

March 2015

Address Fire Inspection Deficiencies Report 

Issued

Fire Inspection  Follow Up Deficiencies corrected Completion Letter 

Issued

Next Fire Inspection Status Update

NIL REPORT

13/04/2015



 

Town of Middleton LIU/GIS 

GIS & Planning Technical Support Services 
Period : March 1 to March 31 
 

  

 

 

Submitted by: Trevor Robar 
 
Date: March 31, 2015 

       
 

March 2015

Task Category Date Hrs

Add civic address to 292-296 Marshall St. Middleton PLAN March 3 2015 0.75

Update Properties in Nascaf (all three towns) PLAN March 19 2015 0.33

Update AVLIU GIS Server Software  & AVLIU Flex Programming PLAN March 23 2015 12.50

Calculate Length of Street, Sidewalk, and Trails. Updated GIS PW March 27 2015 2.00

Review of Public Work GIS Updates with John Pearson and Webber PW March 27 2015 1.75

Update Public Works Portion of AVLIU GIS, from 2012 to present PW March 31 2015 20.00

Hrs

37.33  
 
Category Description:  PW = Public Works PLAN = Planning  REC = Recreation 

OTHER = Meetings, Printing etc… 

 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 
 
Number of Calls for Service:  
 
177 
 
Files of Significance : 
 
Theft from Vehicles – 2 reported incidents, change and small personal items stolen, vehicles 

were left unlocked therefore not damaged by suspect(s) 

Break-and-Enters to Residences – (2) total of $4 stolen from 1 incident, nothing stolen at 

other incident.  No suspects identified. 

Shoplifting – (3) 2x at NSLC with suspects charged.  1 @ Foodland suspect not charged, 

served PPA. 

Motor Vehicle Collision – car collided with Kings Transit bus, no injuries, bus drivable and 

car towed. 

 
 
Files regarding Drug Seizures 
 
Marijuana trafficking – (1) file under investigation 

 
 
SCEU 
 

- Arrested a street-level dealer, seized cocaine. Still under investigation. 

- Conducting on-going investigation of prescription drug dealing and weapons offences 

 

 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 

 
 
Crime Reduction Strategy ....Number of Impaired Drivers, Checkpoints, etc. as this deals with 

the Crime Reduction Strategy. 
 
Check Points Conducted - 6 

Traffic Complaints attended – 18 (+ 3 Parking) 

Tickets – 7 & 1 x 7day driving suspension 

Warnings - 14 

False Alarms – 1 (reported false by Alarm company) 

 

 
 
Meetings with Public Officials ... Mayors, Wardens, Police Advisory Boards  
 
PAB meetings are ongoing and consistent, attended by S/Sgt. MacGillivray and/or Cpl. 

Cornect 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 

Police Community Relations ... Attended functions in your area (ie. Red Serge), events / 

festivals which could impact operations / resources   

 Middleton for Hockeyville – Uniformed Members attended several Town events 

 

 

 

 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 

Community Policing Officer (Rodena Renaud) 

• wrote and submitted a support letter for the Middleton Skate Park committee to apply 

for a grant to build a skate park in Middleton.  This is to address the hole in service delivery 

for access to a recreation facility at all times for no cost for youth. 

• received a referral from a principal to assist a mother of a student that was the victim 

of harassment, investigation has commenced 

• facilitated a parent workshop in partnership with Family Matters on distracted driving. 

• completed a community justice forum for a youth committing fraud. 

• CPO and Cst.Fairfax planned and facilitated junior leader training for the Cops ‘n Kids 

program and RCMP Youth Advisory Board. 

• acted as a liaison between school and a family about bullying, mediation session 

conducted. 

• ordered in books for youth and adults to be given out in celebration of Heritage Day. 

• continued to sit on the Partners Committee that created the Junior Lawrencetown 

Education Centre.  Program currently has 12 at risk youth attending that have completely 

stopped having contact with the CJS since enrollment. 

• completed in class presentation for anti-bullying program to 5 schools, 950 students 

reached  

• acted as a liaison to have the RCMP part of a bravery award for a local youth  

• liaised between the RCMP and Annapolis valley regional School Board during a hold 

and secure 

 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 

• engaged Annapolis District members and informed about local events such as 

Hockeyville and Food Bank drives  

• Presented to operational members about SAFE plan and Hybrid Hub model  

• completed training on Bill C-36, Protection of Communities and Exploited Persons Act  

• Held office hours at BRHS and MRHS to work with Cops ‘n Kids participants  

  

Senior Safety Coordinator (Sharon Elliott) 

- coordinated and lectured on training courses to the Continuing Care Students at the 

Middleton Campus of the NSCC.  The first on Elder Abuse Awareness and Prevention for 

Health Care Providers (Jan 12th), and the second on Seniors Friendly Training (March 11th). 

 Senior Friendly Training provides accurate information on the changes we experience with 

age, combined with experiential activities so that participants have an opportunity to 

experience vision, hearing, and mobility changes while using assistive devices such as 

wheelchairs, canes, and walkers.  Both of these workshops challenge myths and stereotypes 

of older adults that can lead to ageist beliefs and attitudes. 

- Did a presentation on Frauds and Scams Targeting Seniors at the Subway Lunch and 

Learn Senior group on Jan 29th. 

- Provided support for 14 files involving seniors in Middleton 

 

 

 

 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 
 
Financial Issues ... significant unexpected costs, budgetary shortfalls 
 
New office space for Middleton Detachment – Proposal currently with DOJ.  Incentive is 

supported by the Middleton Town Council, the Middleton Detachment Commander, The 

Annapolis District Commander and the District Policing officer in conjunction with the Police 

Advisory Board.   
 
Human Resource Issues ... Vacancies, Parental Leave, Long Term ODS, Suspensions 

S/Sgt. Dan MacGillivray NCOi/c Annapolis District 

2 vacant Corporal Positions (Cpl. Guy and Cpl. Lannon retired) 

Middleton Detachment is currently fully staffed with the following Members: 

Cpl. Gaet Cornect 

Cst. Brad Williams 

Cst. Todd Sparkes 

Cst. Billie Gardiner  

Cst. Banfield  

Cst. Ashley Levy 

Cst. Irene Clouter (Recruit Field Trainer) 

Cst. Ryan Newton (New member on Recruit Field Training) 

Court Liaison Position – The position is currently held by Cst. Ripley  

Detachment Assistant Vacancy – Position has been vacant since Nov. 14, 2014.  Awaiting 

a replacement to be confirmed. 



 

Middleton RCMP 

Quarterly Update 

Period Ending: 2015-03-31 

 
 
Monthly Stats For Quarter ending March 31, 2014    
 
See attached 

 


	COW Agenda - 15.04.20
	Draft Motion List - 15.04.20
	3 - COW Unapproved Minutes - 15 03 16
	4.1 - RFD 008-2015 - Operating Reserve Policy
	4.1 - 008-2015 -  Operating Reserve Policy
	4.1 - Operating Reserve Fund Policy

	4.2 - RFD 009-2015 - Debt Management Policy
	4.2 - 009-2015 -  Debt Management Policy
	4.2 - Debt Management Policy

	4.3 - RFD 010-2015 - Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use Policy
	4.3 - 011-2015 Internet and Mobile Device Acceptable Use
	4.3 - Internet and Mobile Device Usage Policy

	4.4 - RFD 011-2015 - Legacy 2017 Inter-Municipal Agreement
	4.4 - 012-2015 Legacy 2017 Intermunicipal Agreement
	4.4 - Draft Intermunicipal Agreement - Legacy (revised apr13-15)
	4.4 - Media Release
	4.4 - Media Realease Photo

	4.5 - Grants to Organizations
	5.1 - Management  Reports
	5.1 - Mgmt Rpt - Fire - 15.04
	5.1 - Mgmt Rpt - Public Works - 15.04
	5.1 - Mgmt Rpt - Rec and Comm Services - 15.04
	Mgmt Rpt - Rec and Comm Services - 15.04 - a
	Mgmt Rpt - Rec and Comm Services - 15.04 - b

	5.1 - Mgmt Rpt - REMO - 15.04

	5.2 - Planning Services Report - March 2015
	Cover
	PDAR - March 2015
	BAR - March 2015
	FAR -  March 2015
	PGISTAR - March 2015
	PSR - 2015 (Sharon)
	Invoice Report - March 2015

	5.3 - RCMP Report - March 31, 2015
	5.4 - Acounting Activities Reports - March and April 2015
	5.4 - Accounting Activities Report - March 2015
	5.4 - Accounting Activities Report - April 2015




